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.. .This write-up is a part of the Virginia. W. P. A,
~Historical. Inventory Project sponsored by the
_ Virginin Conservalion Commission , under the
direction ol its Division of History. Credit to both

the Commission and W. P. A, is requested for

e« . . _ publication, in whole or in part. Unless otherwiss"
stated, this information has not been checked for

accuracy by the _sponsor, ! ;

Rés carch mado by
Susan Rogers Morton
Haymarket, Virginia

. August 6, 1937 .
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SUBJBOT:

Thoronghfare Gép‘anﬁ Enyirons.

‘LOOATIONt

Situated at the 1line of Prinoe William anﬂ Fau uire .

Counties, on the John Marshall Highway, Route #65, o4

4,5 miles west of Haymarket, Virginia, and five miles
from the Plaina 1n Fauquire Qounty. :

DATR:

=Pridr to 1755b
b o.vnnnsuxr:

From the middle of the 18th oentury until 1836, whon ‘-
there was & division of the property end at the present
time the heirs of Mr. William Beverly own the land soutl
east of the:road, Messrs. Furr and Kerr the mill proper-
ty and the land on the other side of the Rallroad track
belonge to Messrs. George snd Samuel Blight, who inheri-

ted 1t from the Chapman estate. HBighteen &sores lying ox

both sides of the rosd, immediately through the Gap, hes
been recently purohased and converted into & recreations

- Park by the Federal Governmant.

DHSORIPTION:

20 the northwest of the rosd on the waters of Broaa Run,
18 the 0ld stone mill that was for so mény yeérs opera=
ted by the Ohapman family, also the ruins of the 0ld mi)
building and the Chapmen mansion are to the north. The -
mountains which rise, & sheer rooky wall, fern and laure
covered form a besutiful baskground to the waters of
Broad Run, and the peask to the south side of the Gap is
Pond Mountain, that on the north aide. Leather Coat.

'HISTORICAL SIGNIFIOANOH..

N

/Lo begin the history of this Gap, it would be necessary

to go baock to the time when the Red Man was the only

 'trave1er along the way, and this was evidently & favor-

ite meeting place for the tribes who paesed along the
Caroline road only four and one~half miles away, meking
the detour here for fishing and perhaps trading with ot
er tribes. - On the south side of the Run, about five
hundred feet from the rosd, i1s what appears.to have bael
8 camping ground. The late Mr. William Beverly hed -
mede & colleotion of arrow heads, many of them of the
beautiful white quartz that abounds hexre, &nd shards of
pottery that is most intaresting, GSpeoially as. to the

_ identity of the 1atter 8 origln-
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Lord Feirfax, having large tracts of land ‘east and west
"of the Blue Ridge, which he wished surveyed and mapped ,
engaged George Washington, ‘in 1748, to make the survey.
" Washington was three years completing the Job, making
frequent visits to Belvoir and Mount Vernon during thet
" time. .In the yesr 1748 or 1749, he surveyed and took
‘the heights of the Bull Run Mountains at the Gap and
named them.. The peak on the south side of Thorough-
fare Gap, he ocalled Pond Mountain, as at that time thexr
" was & pond there, formed by the damming of the waters
- at the foot of the mountain, and a splendid fishing spo

mich frequented by the Indians.

The pesk on the.north side, he named Leather Ooat Moun=-
tain, in honor of an o0ld woman who livéd in a lgg cabin
‘gbout fifty yards from & very fine spring that 1s known
‘ag Spout Spring. She.did the cooking for Washington
. &and his party at the time that they were working there.
. Tradition has it that she wore & leather ooat and apron
- all the time, regardlees of the season, and was locally
‘known &8s "Mother Leather Coat."” : :

Within the memory of some of the older residents, the
hearthetones and other evidences of a log ogbin could
8t1ll be seen at the spot indicated a8s being the site
of her cabin. Spout Spring is noted for its fine watex
~ and ‘people come from miles to carry it away.

- Aftexr the foot-prints of mococasined feet were no.longer
known, the Gap and Thoroughfare Pike, as that part of t
. highway was known, saw travelers -from.the lower county
- going West, here flowed the articles of commerce going
to Alexandria and Frederioksburg and the '"back settle~-
ments, "sending butter, cheese, flax, hemp, wheat, floux
~ and some tobacco, when 1t was worth three shillings a
pound; it was worth six times that of wheat, but & gene
ation later, Culpepper's Act, authorized payments of
© " debts In commodities other than tobacco; soon caused
" wheat to become the orop of greatest importance. About
~ twenty years later, 1767, the Chapmén Mill was built at
. Thoroughfare Gap and shared in the large amount of flouv
; produced at Sudley Mill, Bull Run and Bdalladine's, at
OGOl 0 T o : : ‘ :

The pike must have been a very busy road in those days
when the great wagone drawn by six horses, gay with bel
brought wheat from the Piéddmond and Valley sections, dx
of cattle and flocks of turkeys made their way along 1
- place to the markets of Alexandria. John Marshall tray
this road in his gig, but the great day for the Gap cap
on August 26, 1862, when Stonewall Jackson passed throv
- %o 'a position directly across from the invaders.commun]
“tione at Bristow, and it was the unprecedented movemer
of & troop thirty-six miles in a day, which brought ‘on
Second Battle of Menassas. =~ i | :

=7
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"My, William Beverly, who was a boy of ten at that time,

- near the beginning of the War Between the States, told

of General Lee spending the night at "Avenel,” the home
of his father, just the other side of the Gap, and of hii
- riding baok of Genersl Lee, on "Traveler," the next morn
. ing, as he tried to sight his men from the hill, Jjust
through the Gap, on the Fauquier side. There was also
an old colored women who was, &8s a child, greatly amused
at General Stuart having some: of his Scouts tie bushes
to the horses tails to obliterate thelr tracks.

There was mnmch hand to hand fighting all through the Gap
and there were numerous soldier's graves scattered about
the vicinity. For many years, "'Thoroughfare" has been
the name applied to the 1little hamlet two miles northeas
of the Gap, where until a short time &go, there was &
~station by that nsme on the Southern Raillriged., but orig
nally the environs of the Gap was the place known as
"yhoroughfare. ™ ‘ : : ' e

- Aside from the busy Chapman Mills, now lknown 88 Beverly'
Mill, there were stores and tanery, saw-mill, slaughter-
houde, and in 1865, there were no houses, except several
log ocabins that belonged either to the Chapman plantatio;
or to Cloverland, and the old Carter-Dulany home at the

place now called Thoroughfare.

Naturally at a place as rioh‘in.draﬁatic 1noident.as is
the Gap and its environs, it would be the setting for

- -many ghost.stories, and "Unole" Joe Ford, who was born.

a slave on the neighboring plantation of Blantyre, just:
through the 4ap, recalls many taleés of superstition that
are assoclated with the place. Blantyre had & hundred. °
and fifty slaves; Cloverland and Chapmen Mills plantatio:
about the same number, and there was much intermingling
amon%at them, and ghost stories and strange nocturnal en
-counters were constantly being told, many of which are

8111l remembered today. . . ~ o :

- On the road that leads from the Gap, to Hopewell, Virgin
to the west, a four horse wagon, driven by & soldier, ga
lops medly along in the still of the night, and woe to t
one who does not get out of the path. There is a large
white calf that 18 met just through the Gap, frequenting
the rooky slope of Pond Mountain, and it's presence is
supposed to presage death to the beholder. Abaut an eig
of a mile from the Mill, on a grassy ledge, where the Ra
road tracks now turn, an Irishman, named Johnny Sweeny,
‘who was & Well known character at the Mill and Store, wh
‘he wap employed, froze to desath one night. He was a.jov
- fellow and much liked by the travelers who sotopped over



‘\'At the store and saloon, ‘but inyariably oA Saturday

e

7.

-Be

Shia i -~ -~

night he would get drunk, and he was .in that condition
when he froze to death. ~Not long afterwards, he was.
seen at the spot ‘where he diea usually carrying his

‘head in his hands.

'Thore is alao the story of the ghostly guaraian of the

buried treasues &t the ruins of the old Chapman home,.

" which 18. repeated m the Teport of that site.
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